
 

Board of Adjustment                                                                                   May 18, 2015 

Township of Ocean Minutes 

                                                                                                                                             

SPECIAL MEETING: 7:00 P.M. Township of Ocean High School Auditorium 

550 West Park Avenue 

Oakhurst 

              

MEMBERS  

PRESENT: 

Maureen Bonney, Alt I 

Jane Grabelle 

Eric Menell 

John Napolitani, Alt II 

Peter Siano, Alt III 

Charles Theodora, Alt IV 

Richard Van Wagner 

James Worrell 

Warren Goode, Chair 

MEMBERS  

ABSENT: 

Russell Malta  

Henry Schepiga, V Chair 

 

    

 

OTHERS PRESENT Mark A. Steinberg,  

James Higgins, P.P. 

William Fitzgerald, P.E. 

Marianne Wilensky,  

Rachel Montemarano, 

Zoning Board Attorney 

Board Planner 

Board Engineer 

Planning Administrator  

Board Secretary 

Recording Secretary 

   

 

Chairman Goode announced that the notice requirements for the Open Public 

Meetings Act have been satisfied, a copy of the notice was sent to the Asbury Park 

Press and the Coaster, posted in the Township Hall, and filed in the Office of the 

Township Clerk on March 4, 2015. 

 

RESOLUTION MEMORIALIZATIONS 

 

Sarah Dorn 

Block 140.10 Lot 2 

315 Lakeview Avenue 

Colonial Terrace  

Bulk Variance Approval 

MOVED: Goode SECOND: Worrell 

FAVOR: Bonney, Grabelle, Menell, Van Wagner, 

Worrell, Goode 

OPPOSED: None 

INELIGIBLE: Napolitani, Siano, Theodora      

ABSENT: Malta, Schepiga    
 

 

Deal Sephardic Youth Center, 

Inc. 

Block 13 Lot 19 

244 Norwood Avenue 

Ocean 

“d” variance approval 

“c” variance approval 

Preliminary and final site plan 

MOVED: Goode SECOND: Grabelle 

FAVOR: Bonney, Grabelle, Menell, Siano,  

Van Wagner, Worrell, Goode 

OPPOSED: None 

INELIGIBLE: Napolitani, Theodora      

ABSENT: Malta, Schepiga    

 

CONTINUED CASE  

 

Yeshiva Gedola Na’os 

Yaakov, Inc. 

Block 216 Lot 19 

1515 Logan Road  

Wanamassa   

Zone R-4 

This is an application for a “d” variance and for minor 

site plan approval for an advanced Talmudic academy. 

 

 

 

Attorney for the applicant: Jennifer S. Krimko, Esquire 

  

 Chairman Goode read the transcript from the previous hearing on February 24, 

2015 and is eligible to vote on this application. 

 

 The Board’s information packet containing the reports of the Board’s professionals 

was marked B-4. A packet containing the minutes from the previous hearings was 

marked B-5. 



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 2 

Township of Ocean                                                                                                 May 18, 2015 

 

 Board Planner James Higgins, P.P. and Board Engineer William Fitzgerald, P.E. 

summarized their reports.  

 

 Attorney for the applicant, Jennifer S. Krimko, Esquire submitted the following 

items into evidence: 

 

A-15 Photo packet prepared by Beacon Planning consisting of 5 photos 

A-16 Site plan prepared by Nelson Engineering revised through 2/24/15  

A-17 Specification detail sheet of a warming cabinet 

A-18 E-mail dated 3/13/15 from Eric Taylor of the Office of Licensure of the 

Office of Higher Education 

A-19 Letter from Mark Lonergan of Johnson & Urban LLC regarding sanitary 

sewer loads 

 

 The architect for the applicant, Steve Carlidge, referred to A-19 and explained 

that Johnson & Urban LLC are consulting engineers for this project. Based on the 

engineer’s letter, he believes that the existing sewer main is adequate for the proposed 

use. The demand for the proposed use was calculated at 164 DFUs, a plumbing 

demand calculation, where the existing 4” sewer mains can accommodate up to 180 

DFUs. Mr. Carlidge said that he also spoke with an acoustical engineer regarding noise 

from the proposed study hall. He said that the proposed use should not generate the 

same noise that would be generated from the existing gym use. The 12” masonry walls 

have a sound transmission coefficient (STC) rating of 45, though this is not regulated by 

building code. If 32 people were speaking simultaneously, it would create 80 decibels. 

The decibel level outside the masonry wall would be measured at 40 decibels. He said 

that the masonry wall is pretty efficient at reducing the sound. The decibel level 50’ 

away is reduced by an additional 12 decibels, which is much lower than a typical 

residential AC unit. Mr. Carlidge said that he believes there will be very little sound 

generated. With regard to the windows, he said that they make up approximately 30% 

of the wall. When the windows are closed, the insulated glass reduces the STC by 30%. 

With regard to light coming from the windows, Mr. Carlidge said that they can install 

light shielding shades. He suggested that the Board could make it a condition of 

approval that the windows/ shades be closed after dark.  

 

Board Attorney Mark Steinberg noted that Mr. Carlidge’s testimony is hearsay as 

he is only relaying what the engineer told him. Ms. Krimko said that he is not an expert in 

acoustical engineering but that he is testifying as to his findings.  

 

Mr. Fitzgerald asked about the capacity of the gym and if it will be air 

conditioned. Mr. Carlidge said that he does not know the exact number, but that it is 

more than 96 people. The gym will be air conditioned, but the condensers are not 

shown on the plans because they do not know where they will be located yet. Ms. 

Krimko said that they will provide that information. 

 

Mr. Fitzgerald said that the applicant needs to go to the Township of Ocean 

Sewerage Authority to make sure that the main in the street can handle the demand of 

the proposed use.  

 

Mr. Fitzgerald asked if the furniture in the proposed study hall can be moved for 

recreational purposes. Mr. Carlidge said that it will be portable, but that there’s been 

testimony that there won’t be recreation in the room. Ms. Krimko said that under Jewish 

law, the students are not permitted to play in the room as it will be used as a Beis 

Medrash, a Jewish study hall. She said that there has been testimony that recreation is 

not an issue with this type of use. 

 

Mr. Carlidge said that they are not using the kitchen for cooking. Food will be 

delivered, placed into the warming cabinets and brought into the dining room. Ms. 

Krimko said that snacks and drinks for the students will be kept in the kitchen. The path 

from the dining room to the kitchen is interior.  

 

 



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 3 

Township of Ocean                                                                                                 May 18, 2015 

 

Mr. Napolitani asked if the sewer mains in Wanamassa were post-war paper 

sewer pipes. Mr. Fitzgerald said that the Sewerage Authority would have those records 

and would know if the existing pipes could accommodate the proposed demand. 

 

Roy Larsen, 1517 Logan Road, referred to the noise ordinance and said that any 

noise after 11 PM that bothers his quiet is in violation. Ms. Krimko said that the applicant 

is aware that they must comply with the noise ordinance. Mr. Steinberg said that the 

ordinance is not subjective, but rather refers to decibel levels that are state 

requirements. When Mr. Larsen said that that is not what he found on the Township’s 

website, Mr. Steinberg said that they will look into it. Mr. Larsen asked if there was any 

testing of noise levels, to which Mr. Carlidge said no. Mr. Larsen said that there is also a 

door that a lot of noise comes through. 

 

David Dempsey, 52 Park Blvd., said that he believes there have been people 

living there for years. The students were in the park and walking the streets every night 

and asked what recourse the neighbors have.  

 

Mary Robin Whitney, 1103 Brower Blvd., asked what the age group of the students 

would be. Chairman Goode said 18-22 years of age. She said that they are adults and 

that it would change the complexion of the neighborhood and that they need to be 

referred to as adults, not boys. 

 

Roy Larsen, 1517 Logan Road, said that the STC of a dual pane window is around 

27. Mr. Carlidge said that that sounds close, but that he did not know.  

 

Bob McMahon, Interlaken Avenue, asked what the total tonnage of the air 

conditioning unit would be for the gym. Mr. Carlidge said that it hasn’t been 

determined yet. Mr. Fitzgerald said that he works on buildings for higher education and 

rarely do they not have that information. Ms. Krimko said that they will provide that 

information. 

 

Roy Larsen, 1517 Logan Road, asked if information on the noise and air 

conditioning units will be available to the public before a vote it taken. Chairman 

Goode said yes. 

 

Dave Boesch, the engineer for the applicant, presented a color rendering of 

sheet 2 of the site plan that was marked into evidence as A-20. Mr. Boesch referred to 

A-13 and A-20 to describe the revisions that have been made to the site plan, including 

removing parking spaces and relocating the drive aisle and the dumpster enclosure to 

the south side of the building. Fencing and landscaping create numerous layers of 

buffering. He said that they are proposing to remove and replace the fence on the 

northern side of the property, tie into the existing chain link fence and then add 

supplemental fencing along the southern edge for headlight screening. The applicant 

would be willing to replace or repair deteriorated fencing if the application is 

approved. Mr. Boesch said that they are reducing the impervious coverage by a ¼ 

acre. He said that 1 acre of disturbance is considered major development, with this 

project being 32,000 sq ft of disturbance. He said that the application would be 

reviewed by the DEP but he felt it was premature to go to the DEP without an idea as to 

the outcome of the application. He said that he will provide the information that Mr. 

Fitzgerald requests in his report, with regard to topography and drainage.  Mr. Fitzgerald 

said that the Board deserves some idea as to the feasibility and to see a plan before 

they go to the DEP.  

 

Chairman Goode asked about the fence and the landscaping. Mr. Boesch said 

that the fence is on the outside and the landscaping is on the inside. Ms. Krimko said 

that it is a maintenance issue as they would need access to the neighbor’s property to 

maintain the landscaping. Estate fences are better for maintenance, but they thought 

that a solid fence would be better for the neighbor. She said the type of fence does not 

make a difference to the applicant.  

 

 



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 4 

Township of Ocean                                                                                                 May 18, 2015 

 

Mr. Van Wagner asked about the dumpsters and refuse pick-up. He asked if there 

will be an increase in refuse. Mr. Boesch said that there are two dumpsters proposed. He 

said that he will look into solid waste estimates for a facility of this type. Mr. Higgins 

suggested using the number of warming units to figure out the unit of storage for food 

to figure out waste. 

 

The Board discussed the driveway in the front of the building. Mr. Boesch said that 

it is being maintained for emergency access and signed and striped per the Fire 

Marshal’s requirements.  

 

The trees along the northern property line are proposed to be 6’-8’ Norway 

Spruces. Mr. Fitzgerald asked if the grown trees will create a shading problem for the 

neighbor. Mr. Boesch said that when the trees reach maturity the shadow will reach the 

base of the neighbor’s foundation. Mr. Fitzgerald said that they will have to prune the 

trees. 

 

Roy Larsen, 1517 Logan Road, asked if the dumpster enclosure can be rotated to 

the west end of the aisle. Mr. Boesch explained that while it physically could be moved, 

he did not know if the DEP would grant a permit for that location due to flood hazard 

areas. 

 

Rose Marie Camoosa, 1806 Bryan Avenue, asked if any of the Board members 

have gone to look at the site. She said that they are asking questions as if they have 

never seen the building before. 

 

Paul Drucker, Oak Avenue, asked about the dumpster enclosure. Mr. Boesch said 

that it is 16’x24’ and can contain two 8 yard dumpsters and 4-5 recycling cans. Mr. 

Drucker asked about the transportation of religious artifacts. Ms. Krimko said that they 

would provide that information if it was something the Board was interested in. 

 

Mary Robin Whitney, 1103 Brower Blvd., said that there is no information on 

topographics and that the Deal Lake Commission’s concerns should be taken into 

account. She asked if dishwashing would take place outside and about the frequency 

of garbage pick-up. Ms. Krimko said that there will be two food deliveries per day and 

no outside dishwashing. She said that they are going to be providing information on 

garbage pick-up. 

 

Jack Fitzmorris, Corlies Avenue, asked where the students will be parking their 

vehicles. Ms. Krimko said that the Rabbi has testified that the students are not permitted 

to bring cars. Mr. Fitzmorris asked how that will be enforced. Ms. Krimko said that the 

Rabbi testified that cars are not permitted, but that the resolution will be recorded with 

the property so a neighbor could report parked cars to the municipality and would be 

in violation of the approvals. 

 

Debbie Conley, 1509 Spruce Avenue, asked if there will be tables and seating in 

the new lawn area. Mr. Boesch said that there are no outdoor improvements proposed 

for the lawn area in the northwest corner. Ms. Conley asked about the gym being used 

as a Beis Medrash. Ms. Krimko said that it is a type of study hall area and the Rabbi has 

testified that the room will not be used for recreation. 

 

Beth Hawes, 903 Darlene Ave., asked if the students will be out on the lawn 

smoking. She said that 90 men smoking cigarettes is a disturbance. Ms. Krimko said that 

testimony has been offered that the students will not be able to smoke. Ms. Hawes said 

that the previous users were not allowed to smoke yet they went into the park and 

smoked. Mr. Steinberg said that the Rabbi has testified that the students are not 

allowed to smoke or they will be expelled. Ms. Krimko said that the lawn will not be a 

smoking area.  

 

 

 

 



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 5 

Township of Ocean                                                                                                 May 18, 2015 

 

David Dempsey, 52 Park Blvd., asked if there will be soda or snack machines or if 

snacks will be delivered. Ms. Krimko said that there will be someone who goes to 

purchase snacks. 

 

Brian Mullins, Bimbler Blvd., asked about DEP permits. Mr. Fitzgerald said that they 

must establish the limits of disturbance and the riparian zones, wetlands and transition 

areas. Mr. Mullins asked if they are disturbing enough land to trigger the DEP. Mr. 

Fitzgerald said he does not know yet, but that he is requesting the information be put on 

the plans.  

 

Roy Larsen, 1517 Logan Road, asked if there will be a topographical study. Mr. 

Boesch said yes. Mr. Larsen referred to a plan from 1996 for the installation of a swale 

and said that the water still flows onto his property. Mr. Boesch said that they will look 

into it in order to correct the problem. 

 

Garrett Revolinsky, 404 Belmont Ave., asked if there will be a curfew and if the 

students would be Ocean Township residents. Ms. Krimko said that the student’s 

schedule was previously discussed and Mr. Steinberg said that the engineer cannot 

testify to that. Ms. Krimko said that the CDs are available for him to listen to the past 

testimony. Mr. Revolinsky said that he does not have time to be at the meetings and 

does not want to listen to the CDs. 

 

The Board took a break beginning at 9:00 PM and resumed at 9:15 PM. 

 

Bart Healy, 1114 Bendemere Ave., asked about the rental activities. Ms. Krimko 

said that the architect testified that the existing use at the school can rent it out for 

events such as tournaments. She said that this proposed use will not be open to the 

public for rentals. Mr. Healy noted that the applicant is moving improvements away 

from the one neighbor’s property, but questioned the issues it would cause for other 

neighbors. Mr. Boesch said that the new proposed locations are equi-distant and there 

are also fence and tree buffers that were taken into account when relocating. 

 

Doug Dombrowiecki, 905 Darlene Ave., asked about visitor parking. Mr. Boesch 

said that there will not be visitors.  

 

Rich McNally, 36 Patterson Ave., asked about the greenbanked parking spaces. 

Ms. Krimko said that they have been eliminated from the plan. Mr. McNally asked if the 

applicant can request more parking in the future. Ms. Krimko said that they would have 

to come back before the Board. After commenting about the Board process and role 

of the Board Attorney, Mr. McNally was asked to return to his seat. Mr. McNally said that 

he was not allowed his rights as a tax payer by not being able to speak and wanted to 

bring his attorney to the next hearing. 

 

Mr. Boesch said that the temporary location in Lakewood has food deliveries 

twice a day and uses disposable silverware and plates. Garbage is picked up once a 

week. He said that they are proposing a similar operation at this location. Mr. Steinberg 

said that it is different because not all the students sleep at the Lakewood location. Ms. 

Krimko said that it is similar because they eat all their meals there. 

 

Brian Mullins, 107 Bimbler Blvd., said that it is not acceptable that all the 

information being provided is anecdotal and that more substantial analyses should be 

submitted. Mr. Steinberg said that the applicant has the burden of proof and the Board 

does not have to accept it. 

 

Heather McKnight, 1137 Interlaken Ave., asked if the applicant will be installing 

sidewalks. Mr. Boesch said no. 

 

Andrew Janiw, the planner for the applicant, referred to an exhibit of photos of 

the site that were marked into evidence as A-15. Mr. Janiw went through the history of 

previous approvals on the site, indicating that there are already approvals for a 

boarding school as a conditional use. The school is currently used as a day school.  



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 6 

Township of Ocean                                                                                                 May 18, 2015 

 

Based on past approvals, a new user of the school could have 50 boarding students in 

9th – 12th grade. The age and the number of the students are what make this new 

proposed use non-permitted. Mr. Janiw said that the proposed use should not be 

confused with the previous uses of the school. He said that this use is more focused and 

the students are totally immersed in the Jewish religion and culture. This intense religious 

use is not unique to the Jewish culture, either, when compared to monasteries or 

convents that require a similar commitment. Changes are being made to the facility to 

accommodate this type of study and they are beautifying the site. Mr. Janiw said that 

no smoking and no car policies are not foreign ideas on college campuses.  

 

Mr. Janiw said that this is an appropriate re-use of the site and an efficient use of 

the land and facilities that are already there. He said that he agrees that this is an 

inherently beneficial use as a religious school.  

 

With the time limit having been reached, Mr. Janiw will continue his planning 

testimony at the next hearing. 

 

Chairman Goode carried the application to the next regular meeting of the 

Board of Adjustment on June 3, 2015. The date for the next hearing of this application 

will be announced at that meeting. There will be no hearing on this application at the 

June 3, 2015 meeting. 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at 10:00 P.M.  

 Rachel Montemarano 

 Board Secretary 

 Recording Secretary 

 


